




















DEPUTY REGISTRAR 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

202  FORMS 

AND 

INSTRUCTIONS 





3.1 PERSONAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

1. List all location numbers for which the applicant intends to submit a proposal (limit six locations).
Check the box underneath if proposing the location as a second site in addition to a current agency:

2. Full legal name of proposer __________________________________________________________

______________________________________

_________________  Zip code ___________

4 County of residence (nonprofit corporation county of operation) _____________

_____________ 

_____________

_____________

_____________

_____________

9. Are you proposing as the owner of a minority business enterprise (MBE)?  No _____  Yes ______

10. Proposer is (check one and follow instructions):

An individual person.  These forms are designed to be self-explanatory for Proposers 
proposing as individual persons.  Answer all questions as they apply to you personally.  If a 
question does not apply to you, enter “N/A” or “Not applicable; 

The Clerk of Courts of  ____________________ County; 

The County Auditor of  ___________________ County.  Answer all questions as they apply 
to you and your position as Clerk of Courts or County Auditor.  If a question does not apply 
to you or your position, enter “N/A” or “Not applicable; 

A nonprofit corporation (NPC). An officer or an authorized agent should answer all 
questions and sign all documents on behalf of the NPC.  The answers must refer to the NPC 
itself and not to the individual officers, agents, or employees of the NPC, unless otherwise 
specified.  Many questions are not applicable to nonprofit corporations.  To assist your 
responses, we have marked those questions “NPC N/A” meaning we believe the marked 
question is not applicable to most nonprofit corporations.  Please answer all other questions 
unless clearly inapplicable.  
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✔
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23. Is Proposer willing and able, if appointed, to maintain during the entire term of your contract a
policy of business liability property damage, and theft insurance satisfactory to the Registrar and
hold the Department of Public Safety, the Director of Public Safety, the Bureau of Motor Vehicles,
and the Registrar of Motor Vehicles harmless upon claims for damages in accordance with Ohio
Revised Code 4503.03(C)? (County Auditor/Clerk of Courts N/A)

No ______  Yes _______  

24. Is Proposer bondable as outlined in Ohio Administrative Code
4501:1-6-01(B)? No ______  Yes _______  

25. Please provide the following information regarding your education.  If applying as a NPC, please
provide educational information for the individual who will manage the license agency business.

High school diploma? No ______  Yes _______

High school name _________________________________________________________________

City __________________________ State _________________________ Zip ___________

College name ____________________________________________________________________

City __________________________ State _________________________ Zip ___________

Major ________________________________  Degree awarded __________________________

College name ____________________________________________________________________

City __________________________ State _________________________ Zip ___________

Major ________________________________  Degree awarded __________________________

26. Computer experience.  Does Proposer have any training or experience working with or using
computers? (Incumbent deputy registrars may take credit for operating BMV computers.  For
nonprofit corporations, this question should be answered for computer systems operated or used in
the nonprofit corporation's activities.)

No ______  Yes _______  
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SANDUSKY HIGH SCHOOL
SANDUSKY OH 44870

N/A

✔

✔

✔

✔



If “YES” please explain all computer experience in detail.  

27. Please provide the requested information for three persons we can contact by telephone during
daytime business hours and who will serve as a character reference for you.  Do not list relatives,
political contacts, or employees of the Department of Public Safety (including BMV).  If we are
unable to contact at least one person or that person is unable to serve as a character reference, you
may be evaluated unfavorably.  Nonprofit corporations should list references who are familiar with
the nonprofit corporation's activities

List any special instructions for contacting this person during business hours: 
  ______________________________________________________________________________ 
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BMV:BASS

MICROSOFT WORD

MICROSFT EXCEL

EMAIL: BEX.NET/ GMAIL

OUT LOOK EXPRESS

TURBO TAX

ONDR WATERFRACT

ATTORNEY GENERAL WEBCHECK/FINGERPRINTING SYSTEM

DOG TAG ONLINE SYSTEM



28. Employment, management, supervisory, and business experience. Each Proposer’s experience is one
of the most important factors to be considered in the award of deputy registrar contracts. For the
purposes of this RFP, experience gained prior to the year 1990 will not be evaluated or considered.
Please provide a professional resume, in chronological order (no earlier than 1990), the positions
you have held. If the position you held in 1990 was one you started before 1990, you may list that
position and the date you actually started on your submitted resume. If you did not hold any position
in 1990, please begin with the first position you held after 1990. If applying as a NPC, please
provide a description of the fundraising, program, and charitable functions of the nonprofit
corporation.
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FORM 3.2(A) BUSINESS OWNERSHIP EXPERIENCE 
FORM 3.2(B) MANAGEMENT AND/OR SUPERVISORY EXPERIENCE 
FORM 3.2(C) EMPLOYEE EXPERIENCE 

Instructions 

It is important that you supply complete and accurate information about all relevant business ownership, 
management, supervisory, and employment experience so that the BMV will be able to verify that 
experience from independent sources. Generally, proposers receive the most consideration for service as 
a deputy registrar, second most consideration for service as a business owner, third most consideration 
for service as a manager or supervisor, fourth most consideration as a deputy registrar employee without 
management experience, and least consideration for other employment experience without any 
supervisory or management experience. Be sure to include as much detailed experience possible within 
the submitted professional resume.  

Nonprofit corporations must report only the businesses and activities conducted by the nonprofit 
corporation itself on Form 3.2(A) Business Ownership Experience. If the nonprofit corporation has 
operated a deputy registrar agency, that information should be entered and submitted on one 
Form 3.2(A) Business Ownership Experience. Any other business activities (fundraising, charitable 
activities, etc.) should also be entered and submitted on a separate 3.2(A) Business Ownership 
Experience. Use a separate Form 3.2 for each separate business activity performed by the NPC and a 
separate Form 3.2(A) for each separate business activity performed by the NPC. 

Form 3.2(A) Business Ownership Experience. Deputy registrars, nonprofit corporations, county 
auditors, clerks of courts, and individuals should use this form to report on businesses actually owned 
and operated by them. 

Form 3.2(B) Management and/or Supervisory Experience. Individuals, county auditors, and clerks 
of courts should use this form to report management and supervisory experience performed by them. 
Service as a county auditor or clerk of court qualifies as management and supervisory experience. 

Form 3.2(C) Employee Experience. Individuals, county auditors, and clerks of courts should use this 
form to report all other employment that did not include management or supervisory authority. 
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3.2(B) MANAGEMENT AND/OR SUPERVISORY EXPERIENCE 

Instructions.  Please fill out one of these forms 3.2(B) for each separate management or supervisory job 
you have held. Do not use this form 3.2(B) for business ownership or regular employee positions. Use a 
separate form 3.2(B) for each management or supervisory position that you have held. Please make 
additional copies of this form as necessary. 

Proposer's name ________________________________ Company name ________________________ 

Company address _____________________________________  City __________________________ 

State_____________________  Zip ______________  Telephone (            ) _____________________ 

Type of business (deputy registrar, retail grocery, etc.) ________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Management/supervisory duties  _________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

MANAGER OR SUPERVISOR - Job title: _________________________________________________ 

1. Title of position   ____________________________________  Hours worked weekly?  _______

2. Dates this position was held: From: month  ____  year  ______ To: month  _____ year  _______

3. Do/did you directly hire, evaluate, train, and discipline employees?  No _______  Yes _______

4. Do/did you directly manage/supervise employees on a daily basis?  No _______  Yes _______

If you answered yes to question number 4, how many employees do/did you manage? __________

5. Have you ever developed a comprehensive business plan? No _______  Yes _______ 

List at least one person, not a relative of yours, who can verify this experience.  If we cannot contact at 
least one person to verify this experience, you will not receive any credit for it.  (If you are a deputy 
registrar or deputy registrar employee, you may list BMV employees to verify that experience.) 
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CHRISTINE M MARSHALL SANDUSKY LICENSE BUREAU INC

1050 CLEVELAND RD SANDUSKY

OH 44870 625-1983

DEPUTY REGISTRAR

INVENTORY , MONTHLY REPORTS, TRAIN NEW EMPLOYEES

OPEN AND CLOSING PROCEDURES. 

 MANAGER

OFFICE MANAGER/ASST. MANAGER 40

4 99 5 14

8

✔

✔

✔
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3.2(C) EMPLOYEE EXPERIENCE 

Instructions.  Please fill out one of these forms 3.2(C) for each and every separate job you have held as 
an employee. Do not use this form 3.2(C) for business ownership or jobs in which you had management 
or supervisory duties. Use a separate form 3.2(C) for each non-management and/or non-supervisory job 
held. Please make additional copies of this form as necessary. 

Proposer's name ________________________________ Company name ________________________ 

Company address _____________________________________  City __________________________ 

State_____________________  Zip ______________  Telephone (            ) _____________________ 

Type of business (deputy registrar, retail grocery, etc.) ________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

EMPLOYEE - Job title: ________________________________________________________________ 

Hours worked weekly _____________  Job duties _________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Dates of this employment: From:  month  ______   year  _______    To:  month  ______   year  _______ 

Describe how and to what extent you provided high quality customer service at this position: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

List at least one person, not a relative of yours, who can verify this experience.  If we cannot contact at 
least one person to verify this experience, you will not receive any credit for it.  (If you are a deputy 
registrar or deputy registrar employee, you may list BMV employees to verify that experience.) 

(        ) 
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CHRISTINE M MARSHALL SANDUSKY LICENSE BUREAU INC

117 WOODLAWN AVE SANDUSKY

OH 44870 625-1983

DEPUTY REGISTRAR

CLERK

PROCESS VEHICLE REGISTRATIONS, STATE ID CARDS40

DRIVERS LICENSE, TEMPORARY PERMITS, TITLE WORK , TEMPORARY TAGS

9 95 1 99

419



3.3 CUSTOMER SERVICE EXPERIENCE 

Instructions. Please give us a list of ideas you have to improve customer service at your deputy 
registrar agency. You will only receive full credit if you demonstrate customer service 
awareness.  

A. This is a list of ideas I have to improve customer service at my deputy registrar agency if I am
awarded a contract (Please be specific) and/or this is an example of something I have done as part of
my job or business to improve services for my customers (Please be specific):

Form 3.3, Customer Service Experience (202 ) 

OPEN EARLY WHEN EVER POSSIBLE AND STAY OPEN LATE FOR LAST MINUTE 
CUSTOMERS COMING UP TO THE DOOR 

ASSIST ELDERLY CUSTOMERS IN EVERY WAY POSSIBLE. EXAMPLE HOLD DOORS, 
WALK OUT TO CAR, PUT STICKERS OR PLATES ON FOR THEM. 

APPLY ALL STICKERS TO NEW PLATES WHILE PROCESSING THE TRANSACTION

MAIL OR FAX FORMS IF REQUESTED BY THE CUSTOMER

I HAVE A PODIUM PERSON AT THE ENTRY OF THE AGENCY TO CHECK CUSTOMERS 
DOCUMENTS BEFORE WAITING AND ASSIGN THEM A NUMBER FROM QFLOW

I ALSO PROVIDE WEBCHECK/FINGERPRINTING, DOG TAGS AND WATERCRAFT 
REGISTRATION SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS

PROVIDE COPY AND FAX SERVICE FOR CUSTOMERS

I ALSO USE QFLOW TO THE CUSTOMERS ADVANTAGE BY HAVING 1 CLERK PROCESS
 VRS ONLY TO MOVE THE CUSTOMERS ALONG QUICKLY





3.6 PERSONNEL POLICY  

A comprehensive personnel policy must be readily available and presented upon request. 
Items needing covered within the agency’s comprehensive personnel policy are listed 
below. 

Do you agree to provide a comprehensive personnel policy  if requested  that covers 
the listed items?   

No   Yes 

COMPREHENSIVE PERSONNEL POLICY MUST INCLUDE PROVISIONS FOR: 

HIRING EMPLOYEES WITH DEPUTY REGISTRAR AGENCY EXPERIENCE 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
EMPLOYEE TRAINING BY THE DEPUTY REGISTRAR 
PARTICIPATION IN BMV PROVIDED TRAINING 
DOCUMENTED PERIODIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 
(ANNUAL AT A MINIMUM)   
LIST OF GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE OR DISMISSAL
PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
DRESS CODE WITH LISTS OF ACCEPTABLE AND UNACCEPTABLE ATTIRE 
POLICY FOR MAINTAINING PROFESSIONAL APPEARANCE  
FRINGE BENEFITS  

Form 3.6, Personnel Policy Summary (202 ) 

✔



3.7 SECURITY PLAN SUMMARY 

If you are awarded a contract, you will be required to adopt a security plan to assure that agency employees, 
patrons, other citizens, equipment, and consigned inventory will be protected from harm (your plan should 
detail how you intend to address the items listed below). 

If you are awarded a contract, do you agree to provide all of the following?  
Yes       No 

ELECTRONIC ALARM SYSTEM  
ALARM SYSTEM MONITORED 24 HOURS, OFF-SITE 
ALARM SYSTEM REPORTS OFF-SITE IF WIRES ARE CUT OR TAMPERED 
ADEQUATE ALARM MONITORED PANIC/HOLD BUTTONS 
MOTION DETECTORS CONNECTED TO ALARM SYSTEM 
ALARM MONITORED DOOR CONTACT ON ALL EXTERIOR DOORS 
ALARM MONITORED CONTACTS ON ALL EXTERIOR WINDOWS 
VIDEO RECORDING CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM 
A SAFE OR SECURE LOCKING CABINET 
A SECURED STORAGE ROOM WITH ALARM MONITORED CONTACTS ON DOOR(S) AND 
WINDOW(S) 
A CROSS CUT SHREDDER 
SECURELY LOCK ALL DOORS AND WINDOWS WHEN OUTSIDE BUSINESS HOURS 
SMOKE, FIRED, AND CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTION DEVICES 
INTERIOR/EXTERIOR MOTION ACTIVATED SECURITY LIGHTS 

Note: For Deputy Provided Sites, the deputy registrar shall install and maintain an approved 
alarm system. At BMV Controlled Sites, either the BMV or the deputy registrar will 
install an approved alarm system, which will be maintained by the deputy registrar. 
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3.8 FACILITY MAINTENANCE PLAN SUMMARY 

If you are awarded a contract you will be required to adopt a facility maintenance plan, including 
provisions for maintaining the deputy registrar agency premises.  Your plan should detail how you 
intend to address the items listed below. 

If you are awarded a contract, do you agree to be responsible for the following either on your own, 
through your lease or sublease, or by separate contract: 

         No ______ Yes ______ 

OUTDOOR BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
KEEP OUTDOOR AREA FREE OF TRASH AND DEBRIS 
PROVISION TO ASSURE PROMP SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 
CLEANING INSIDE OF AGENCY INCLUDING EQUIPMENT  
PROVISION FOR INSIDE/OUTSIDE MAINTENANCE  
PROVISION FOR PROFESSIONAL CARPET/FLOOR CLEANING (MIN. OF ONCE A YEAR) 
PROVISION FOR REPAINTING AND/OR COSMETIC UPDATES 

Form 3.8, Facility Maintenance Plan Summary (202 ) 

✔



 Answer all of the following questions to the best of your ability. Please be concise and 
attempt to limit each answer to seventy-five (75) words or less. Include attachment(s) if more space is 
needed to answer any of the questions. 

1. How do you plan to manage, be responsible, and be accountable for this business at all times?

2. How will you ensure that all laws, rules, guidelines and procedures are followed, at all times,
specifically with regard to issuing and renewing driver’s licenses, identification cards, and vehicle
registrations?

3. What measures will you put in place to detect, deter, and prevent fraud?

4. The Bureau of Motor Vehicles routinely issues new and/or revised policy and procedural changes
through email broadcasts to the deputy registrars. How will you ensure that policies and procedures
are communicated to the staff and followed on a daily basis?

I will be responsible and accountable for the business by being a hands on working Deputy Registrar
 as I have for the last 10 years. My employees understand I am responsible for everything they do. 
Therefore, I will ensure the staff is well trained in policy and procedures. They will be trained to be 
capable of handling transactions and situations that occur. When I am out of the office I will always 
be available by cell phone.

To ensure the laws, rules and guidelines are being followed I ensure the clerks are fully trained in all
 BMV processing procedures. The clerks will also be familiar with the Drivers License and Vehicle 
registration manuals and the ORC and OAC. Managers along with myself will supervise clerks 
doing transactions and check the applications that are being processed for errors. When I am 
supervising clerks doing transactions if I see them doing something incorrectly, I will correct them 
professionally so we can finish the customer as quickly as possible. Immediately after the 
transaction I will train/coach the clerk to prevents the clerk from making the same error again.

All employees will complete fraud training on the computer provide by the BMV. All employees 
will be aware of where the fraudulent document training tools are located in the office. Clerks will 
be required to look at all documents to ensure they are authentic if there is a document in question 
the clerks will get a manager or myself to have reviewed. If the documents all fraudulent then 
fraudulent procedures will be followed as stated in the BMV manual. Most importantly watching the
 clerks to ensure they are checking the documents, signatures, and pictures in BASS to be sure they 
are processing and verify who they are waiting on.

Broadcast are printed immediately after being sent by the BMV. A supervisor will take the 
broadcast to each employee and have them read and initial. If there are any questions about the 
broadcast the supervisor will answer them at that time. The broadcast are  placed in a 3ring binder 
for reviewing at any time.  At the end of the day a Manager or myself will discuss the broadcast 
with the whole team.



5. How will you demonstrate good leadership to your employees?

6. How will you maintain a high level of professionalism each day in this business?

7. How do you intend to recruit and retain high quality employees?

8. How will you provide a safe, clean and friendly place to do business?

9. How would you deal with an irate customer?

I will demonstrate good leadership by being professional, kind and respectful to my employees and 
customers.   I will lead my staff by being a team player with a positive attitude. I always ask the 
clerks do they need help with anything? Is there any thing I can explain to you better  to help you 
understand a policy or procedure?

I will train my employees to be professional, respectful and kind to the customers and each other at 
all times. I will ensure each clerk treats their customer with kindness and respect. If there is a time 
where I see a clerk not treating a customer the way they should be treated. I will pull them aside and 
have a conversation with the clerk to get their behavior corrected.  If its severe enough it will result 
in discipline.

While it is challenging to retain quality employees, I use a couple of different resources such as 
Indeed, the local new paper and online recruiting companies. I run not only the BCI/FBI background
 check but I also use an online court records system. Most times it hard to retain high quality 
employees because of the pay and benefits. I feel if I can own/operate  several license agencies then 
I would be able to raise wages  to compete with other local business, such as fast food chains, banks,
  shopping stores, and factories etc.

I will provide a clean environment by having a daily cleaning list. The employees will clean during 
slow times and maintenance will be done on the weekends when we are closed. I will make the 
office safe by having the video surveillance and panic buttons available as a part of the security 
system. Keep the employees happy is a way to keep the agency a friendly place of business. If the 
staff is happy they will be nice and friendly to the customers and always put them first. 

How I deal with an irate customer is by letting them explain the problem or the situation they are in. 
Most of the time customers just want to be heard. I would give the customer options and let them 
choose what they would like to do. I show them empathy and kindness to help them understand the 
options I gave them. If I can't solve their situation, I will give them a phone number or address to 
someone that can. My last attempt if needed I would call the BMV help desk for suggestions.



10.

11. How will you meet the expectations of the Bureau of Motor Vehicles?

12.

I will train my employees to stay calm listen to the customer completely. The clerk should try to 
figure out a solution for the customer if they can't then they should get a manger to help with the 
situation. We always want the customer to leave with a positive attitude toward the agency.

I will continue to meet the expectation of the BMV by serving the customers with the highest level 
of respect and kindness. My staff and I will continue to follow all laws, policies and procedures in 
the ORC, OAC,RFP and Deputy registrar manuals

The BMV should consider me because I have been a Deputy Registrar for the last 10.  I currently 
have to agencies and 29 years experience in a License Agency. I am very hardworking and 
dedicated to my agencies and will continue to be. I believe I can over  come any obstacle or 
challenge put in front of me. I really do enjoy my job. It's my absolute pleasure serving the citizens 
of Ohio and I really hope I get the opportunity to continue to do so.
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5.1 SITE QUESTIONNAIRE 

1. Location Number for which you are proposing (from Agency Specifications):   _________________

Street address of site  _______________________________________________________________ 

City  _________________________________________________, Ohio,  Zip Code  ____________

2. Is the site you are proposing currently in operation as a deputy registrar agency?

No _______  Yes _______ 

3. Do you intend to perform construction or remodeling to prepare this site for operation under a new
deputy registrar contract?

No _______  Yes _______ 

4. Are you applying for a contract at an existing license agency site that
was approved under  contract?

No _______ Yes _______

5. A. If you answered “No” to question number 4, skip to question number 7, and complete the
information required for this form (5.1) and the remainder of Section 5 forms 5.2 through 5.4. 

B. If you answered “Yes” to question number 4, have there been any changes to the site
(interior and/or exterior to include parking areas, path of travel, and accessibility to individuals
with disabilities, and signage)?

No _______ Yes _______

6. A. If you answered “No” to question number 5,  rint and submit this 
compliance with Section Five (5) requirements for this RFP and include it with the 

remainder  of your required proposal documents.  

B. If you answered “Yes” to question number 5, list the site changes in the space below and be
specific with the description(s) of any changes that have been made. Include additional
supporting documentation and attachments if needed, then stop here. Print and submit this page
along with any other documentation and attachments for compliance with Section 5
requirements for this RFP and include it with all other required proposal documents.

48F
3606 W SYLVANIA AVE SUITE 15-16

TOLEDO 43623

✔

✔

✔

✔

The counter space between terminal number 4 and number 5 was modified to meet 
terminal specs of 60"w x 30"d x48h  for a new terminal to be added. The previous 
counter space measured 60"w x 42 3/4d x 48"h. 12 3/4" was cut off at an angle to 
modify  Counter  it to measure 30" deep.  Drawings are scanned in showing the new 
(current) counter plan. Also the modified counter plan is included. 
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7. Do you agree to comply with applicable Ohio Building Code requirements if construction or
remodeling is necessary?

No _______  Yes _______ 

8. Is the site located in a city or village? ________________________ 

If so, name of city or village ________________________ 

If not, name of township in which it is located ________________________ 

9. In what county is this site located? ________________________ 

10. Is your proposed site within the geographic area specified in the Agency Specifications?

No _______  Yes _______ 

11. If proposed location is NOT within the geographic area specified in the Agency Specifications, list
proposed locations in preferred order of importance starting with “most” important.

12. Have you included a map, with a mark showing the precise location of the proposed site?

No _______  Yes _______ 

13. How many parking spaces are available for this site? ____________  spaces 

14. How many other businesses share the parking facilities? _____________  business(es) 

15. What is the distance of the nearest regular parking space from the closest public entrance of the
proposed agency site using the shortest route a person could safely walk?

 _____________  feet 

16. How many of the parking spaces are off-street (in a lot or garage)?  ___________  spaces 

17. How many of the parking spaces are paved?  __________  spaces 

18. How many of the parking spaces are free (no charge for parking)?  __________ spaces 

19. How many of the parking spaces are reserved exclusively for the use of
deputy registrar customers?  spaces 

TOLEDO

LUCAS

157
11

35
157
157
157

0

✔

✔

✔ ✔
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20. Do you agree to keep the agency at a reasonable temperature?
No _______ Yes __________ 

21. Will the site be safe for agency employees and patrons and will it have security available?

No _______ Yes __________ 

Submission of a floor plan of the site is mandatory.  If original drawings are larger 
than 8-½ x 11 inches, you must also provide a reduced size copy  All 
dimensions must be indicated on the drawing. Copies of previous submissions will be accepted, 
provided there have not been any changes since the last proposal.  

22. Have you submitted a complete floor plan of the site, showing all
dimensions of all the interior areas? No _______  Yes _______ 

23. How much space is allocated for the customer area? ______________  square feet 

24. How much space is allocated for the employee service area? ______________  square feet 

25. How much space is allocated for the employee private area? ______________  square feet 

26. How much space is allocated for the storage area? ______________  square feet 

27. How much space is allocated for the restroom facilities? ______________  square feet 

28. How much space is allocated for uses not listed above? ______________  square feet 

29. Total square footage of agency? ______________  square feet 

Submission of a counter plan is mandatory.  
All 

dimensions, including those of the disability accessible counter, must be shown. Copies of 
previous submissions will be accepted, provided there have not been any changes since the last 
proposal. 

30. Have you submitted a counter plan showing all dimensions of your counters?

No _______  Yes _______ 

31. Are your counters to be in accordance with RFP counter specifications?
No _______  Yes _______ 

1126
739
187
160
136
492
2840

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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32. Please indicate which of the two counter options from the Counter Specifications, RFP Appendix 2.1,
you are choosing:

 ________  A. Operator sit-down arrangement _________ B. Operator stand-up arrangement 

33. Will your customer service counter be a minimum of 46 inches and a maximum of 48 inches (or for
incumbent deputies only, a maximum of 50 inches) high?

No _______ Yes _______

 Actual Measurement: ___________ inches 

34. Do you agree to position all computers so they are adequately protected from damage by customers?

No _______ Yes _______ 

35. Will the total length of your equipment support counter be at least 60 inches for each terminal?

No _______ Yes _______

Actual Total Length (all counters):  _____________  feet 

36. Will the depth of your regular counter be a minimum of 30 inches and a maximum of 36 inches?

No _______  Yes _______ 

Actual Depth:  ____________  inches 

37. Will each 60-inch section of your counter be able to support at least 100 pounds of equipment?

No _______  Yes _______ 

38. Will you provide space for a vision screener at a reasonable height and conveniently located to the
disabled-accessible counter?

No _______  Yes _______ 

39. Do you agree to provide a counter, acceptable to the BMV, to accommodate the digitized driver's
license production equipment?

No _______  Yes _______ 

40. Will the disabled-accessible section of your counter be a minimum of 36 inches wide and have a knee
hole opening of at least 27 inches clearance height, 30 inches wide and 19 inches deep?

No _______  Yes _______ 

 Height:   ___________________ Width:   ______________________ Depth:  _________________ 

48

50

30

30 72 30

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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41. Will you have at least one terminal service area which will be readily accessible for use by individuals
with a disability?

No _______  Yes _______ 

42. Will you provide space either on the counter or on one or more separate printer stands (additional
space of at least 30 inches wide) for each of the printers in the agency?

No _______  Yes  ______ 

43. How many signs do you propose for the location? __________  signs 

44. List below the location and size (all dimensions) of your signs or proposed signs:

Location of signs   Dimensions of signs

45. Form 5.3.  You must give satisfactory evidence that the facility you have proposed will be available
for the operation of a deputy registrar agency during the entire period of the contract.  If you will be
leasing the facility from someone else, you must submit a fully executed (signed, notarized, and
accepted) Lease Option, Form 5.3.  If you own the property yourself, you must submit a copy of your
deed along with a Lease Option, Form 5.3, giving yourself an option or a written statement that the
property is available for use as a deputy registrar agency.

46. Form 5.4. Is the location for which you are proposing designated a DEPUTY PROVIDED
PROXIMITY SITE in the Agency Specifications for that location?

_________ Yes. You must complete and submit with your proposal a fully completed Proximity
Attachment, Form 5.4. 

_________ No. Please do not submit the Proximity Attachment, Form 5.4. 

4

FRONT ENTRANCE

WNDOW

STREET ENTRANCE NORTH

STREET ENTRANCE SOUTH

5'X1'9"X1

2'X3'

3'6"X7'X1"

3'6X7'X1"

✔

✔

✔



5.2 ADA CHECKLIST 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACCESSIBILITY REPORT 

Form 5.2, ADA Checklist, Page 1 of 7 (202 ) 

Answer all questions for the proposed facility as it now exists.  If the site as it now exists is deficient in 
any respect, list in the spaces provided all improvements the landlord or you will make if you are 
awarded a deputy registrar contract.  Be specific.  You may use the possible solutions noted on this form 
or you may propose your own solutions.  If the proposed facility is under construction, answer all 
questions regarding the facility after completion in accordance with the construction plans.  If any 
question clearly does not apply, mark it “Not Applicable” or “N/A.” 

1. ACCESSIBLE ENTRANCE.  People with disabilities should be able to arrive at a parking space
accessible to persons with disabilities on the site, approach the building, and enter the building as
freely as everyone else.  At least one path of travel should be safe and accessible for everyone,
including people with disabilities.  “Accessible space” means a parking space which meets all
Americans with Disabilities (ADA) requirements for disability (formerly “Handicapped”) parking.
“Accessible entrance” means an entrance to a building which meets ADA requirements for access
by persons with disabilities, including persons who are in wheelchairs.

A. Is there a path of travel from the disability accessible parking space to
the agency entrance that does not require the use of stairs? No _____  Yes _____ 

B. Is the path of travel stable, firm, and slip-resistant? No _____  Yes _____ 

C. Except for curb cuts, is the path at least 36 inches wide? No _____  Yes _____ 

D. Do curbs on the pathway have curb cuts at least 32 inches wide at all
necessary points? No _____  Yes _____ 

If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to, adding a ramp, designing 
an alternative path of travel, repairing surfaces, widening the pathway, installing curb cuts, etc.  

Improvements to be made: 

A. _______________________________________________________________________________

B. _______________________________________________________________________________ 

C. _______________________________________________________________________________ 

D. _______________________________________________________________________________

2. RAMPS.  Are ramps necessary to permit wheelchair access? Yes _____ No _____ 

If “yes” complete the following information.  If “no," skip forward to “Parking and Drop-Off 
Areas,” next page. 

A. Are the slopes of ramps no greater than 1:12? No _____  Yes _____

Slope is given as a ratio of the height to length.  1:12 means for every 12 inches along the base
of the ramp, the height increases one inch.  For a 1:12 maximum slope, at least one foot of ramp
length is needed for each inch of height.

B. Do all ramps longer than six (6) feet have railings on both sides? No _____  Yes _____ 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔





5.2 ADA CHECKLIST 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACCESSIBILITY REPORT 

Form 5.2, ADA Checklist, Page 3 of 7 (202 ) 

If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to, reconfiguring spaces by 
repainting stripes, moving the spaces, adding proper signs, etc. 

Improvements to be made: 

A. _______________________________________________________________________________

B. _______________________________________________________________________________ 

C. _______________________________________________________________________________ 

After improvements, if any, have been made, how far will it be between the nearest accessible 
parking space to the nearest accessible building or mall entrance using the most direct path a 
wheelchair can safely travel? 

Measurement =  ____________  Feet 

Is the nearest accessible space within two hundred (200) feet of the 
 accessible entrance? No _____  Yes _____ 

Is the nearest accessible space within one hundred (100) feet of the  
 accessible entrance? No _____  Yes _____ 

4. ENTRANCE.  If there are stairs at the main entrance, is there also a
ramp or lift, or is there an alternative accessible entrance? No _____  Yes _____ 

A. Do all inaccessible entrances have signs indicating the location of
the nearest accessible entrance? No _____  Yes _____ 

B. Can the accessible entrance be used independently? No _____  Yes _____ 

C. Does entrance door have at least 32 inches clear opening
(for double door, at least one 32-inch leaf)? No _____  Yes _____ 

D. Is there at least 18 inches of clear wall space on the pull
side of the door, next to the handle? No _____  Yes _____ 

A person using a wheelchair needs this space to get close enough to open the door 

E. Is the threshold level (less than 1/4 inch high) or beveled,
up to 1/2 inch high? No _____  Yes _____ 

F. Are doormats 1/2 inch high or less with beveled or secured edges? No _____  Yes _____ 

G. Is the door handle no higher than 48 inches and operable
with a closed fist? No _____  Yes _____

(The “closed fist” test for handles and controls: Try opening the door or operating the control
using only one hand, held in a fist.  If you can do it, so can a person who has limited use of his or
her hands.)
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✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to repair, replacement, or 
removal of any fixtures or materials creating obstacles. 

Improvements to be made: 

A. ______________________________________________________________________________

B. ______________________________________________________________________________

C. ______________________________________________________________________________

D. ______________________________________________________________________________

E. ______________________________________________________________________________

F. ______________________________________________________________________________

G. ______________________________________________________________________________

5. ACCESS TO ALL DEPUTY REGISTRAR SERVICES.  Ideally, the layout of the building
should allow people with disabilities to obtain goods or services without special assistance.  Where it
is not possible to provide full accessibility, assistance or alternative services should be available
upon request.

A. Does the accessible entrance provide direct access to the
main floor, lobby, or elevator? No _____  Yes _____ 

B. Are all public spaces on an accessible path of travel? No _____  Yes _____ 

C. Is the accessible route to all public spaces and services
at least 36 inches wide (except for interior doors)? No _____  Yes _____ 

D. Are the aisles between chairs or tables at least 36 inches wide? No _____  Yes _____ 

E. Are there spaces for wheelchair seating distributed throughout? No _____  Yes _____ 

F. Do interior doors into public spaces have at least a 32-inch clear opening? No _____  Yes _____

G. On the pull side of interior doors, next to the handle, is there
at least 18 inches of clear wall space so that a person using a
wheelchair can get close enough to open the door? No _____  Yes _____ 

H. Can doors be opened without too much force? No _____  Yes _____ 

I. Are door handles 48 inches high or less and operable with a closed fist? No _____  Yes _____

J. Are all interior thresholds, if any, level (less than 1/4 inch high),
or beveled, up to 1/2 inch high? No _____  Yes _____ 

K. Is carpeting, if any, low-pile, tightly woven, and securely
attached along edges? No _____  Yes _____ 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to repair, replacement, or 
removal of any fixtures or materials creating obstacles. 

Improvements to be made: 

A. _______________________________________________________________________________

B. _______________________________________________________________________________

C. _______________________________________________________________________________

D. _______________________________________________________________________________

E. _______________________________________________________________________________

F. _______________________________________________________________________________

G. _______________________________________________________________________________

H. _______________________________________________________________________________

I. _______________________________________________________________________________

J. _______________________________________________________________________________

K. _______________________________________________________________________________

SEATS, TABLES & COUNTERS 

A. Are the aisles between fixed seating (other than assembly area seating)
at least 36 inches wide? No _____  Yes _____ 

B. Is the top of the ADA table or counter between 28 and 34 inches high? No _____  Yes _____

C. Are knee spaces at accessible tables at least 27 inches clearance height,
30 inches wide, and 19 inches deep? No _____  Yes _____ 

If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to repair, replacement, or 
removal of any fixtures or materials creating obstacles. 

Improvements to be made: 

A. _______________________________________________________________________________

B. _______________________________________________________________________________

C. _______________________________________________________________________________

6. RESTROOM USAGE.  Restrooms should be accessible to people with disabilities.

A. Is there currently a restroom available for use by the customers
of the agency? No _____  Yes _____ 

B. Is at least one restroom (either one for each sex, or unisex)
fully ADA accessible? No _____  Yes _____ 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACCESSIBILITY REPORT 
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C. Is there adequate signage identifying the ADA restroom(s)? No _____  Yes _____ 

D. Is the doorway of the ADA restroom at least 32 inches clear? No _____  Yes _____ 

E. Are doors to the ADA restroom(s) equipped with accessible handles
(operable with a closed fist), 48 inches high or less? No _____  Yes _____ 

F. Can doors to the ADA restroom(s) be opened easily
(5-pound maximum force)? No _____  Yes _____ 

G. Does the entry configuration to the ADA restroom(s) provide
adequate maneuvering space for a person using a wheelchair? No _____  Yes _____ 

H. Is there a 36-inch-wide path to all fixtures in the ADA restroom(s)? No _____  Yes _____ 

If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to repair, replacement, or 
removal of any fixtures or materials creating obstacles. 

Improvements to be made: 

A. _______________________________________________________________________________

B. _______________________________________________________________________________

C. _______________________________________________________________________________

D. _______________________________________________________________________________

E. _______________________________________________________________________________

F. _______________________________________________________________________________

G. _______________________________________________________________________________

H. _______________________________________________________________________________

STALLS.  The following questions apply to ADA restroom(s).

A. Is the stall door operable with a closed fist, inside and out? No _____  Yes _____ 

B. Is there a wheelchair-accessible stall that has an area of at least
5 feet by 5 feet, clear of the door swing, OR is there a stall that is
less accessible but that provides greater access than a typical stall
(either 36 by 69 inches or 48 by 69 inches)? No _____  Yes _____ 

C. In the accessible stall, are there grab bars behind and on the side
wall nearest to the toilet? No _____  Yes _____ 

D. Is the toilet seat 17 to 19 inches high? No _____  Yes _____ 

If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to repair, replacement, or 
removal of any fixtures or materials creating obstacles. 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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Improvements to be made: 

A. _______________________________________________________________________________

B. _______________________________________________________________________________

C. _______________________________________________________________________________

D. _______________________________________________________________________________

LAVATORIES.  The following questions apply to ADA restroom(s).

A. Does one lavatory have a 30-inch-wide by 48-inch-deep clear
space in front? No _____  Yes _____ 

B. A maximum of 19 inches of the required depth may be under the lavatory. No _____  Yes _____

C. Is the lavatory rim no higher than 34 inches? No _____  Yes _____ 

D. Is there at least 29 inches from the floor to the bottom of the
lavatory apron (excluding pipes)? No _____  Yes _____ 

E. Can the faucet be operated with one closed fist? No _____  Yes _____ 

F. Are soap and other dispensers and hand dryers within reach ranges
and usable with one closed fist? No _____  Yes _____ 

G. Is the mirror mounted with the bottom edge of the reflecting surface
40 inches high or lower? No _____  Yes _____ 

If the answer is “no” to any of these questions, list specific improvements which will be made if you 
are awarded a contract.  Possible solutions include, but are not limited to repair, replacement, or 
removal of any fixtures or materials creating obstacles. 

Improvements to be made: 

A. _______________________________________________________________________________

B. _______________________________________________________________________________

C. _______________________________________________________________________________

D. _______________________________________________________________________________

E. _______________________________________________________________________________

F. _______________________________________________________________________________

G. _______________________________________________________________________________

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔







5.4 PROXIMITY ATTACHMENT 

Instructions

If the location you are submitting a proposal for is designated in the Agency Specifications as a deputy 
Provided Proximity Site, complete this form and include the original with your proposal. If it is 
designated as a Deputy Provided Non-Proximity Site, do not submit this form. 

This document is for locations which the Registrar has designated for One-Stop Shopping to encourage 
the deputy registrar to provide a site located close to either an existing Driver's License Examination
Station or an existing Clerk of Courts Title Office. 

Bureau of Motor Vehicles (BMV) records indicate that a Driver's License Examination Station or a 
Clerk of Courts Title Office, or both, are situated within the boundaries of this location. 

If there are both a Driver's License Examination Station and a Clerk of Courts Title Office within the 
boundaries of this location, equal consideration will be given for situating close to either one. 

In evaluating the proposed deputy registrar site's proximity to either a Driver's License Examination 
Station (Exam Station) or a Clerk of Courts Title Office (Title Office), the Registrar intends to give the 
following consideration: 

Highest Consideration:  Highest consideration will be given to sites situated in the same 
building, in an adjacent building, within the same business district, or within the same 
shopping center as the existing Exam Station or Title Office. 

Second Highest Consideration:  Second highest consideration will be given to sites 
situated within approximately one-half mile, by most direct public-access route, to the 
existing Exam Station or Title Office. 

Proposers shall not attempt to influence a Driver's Examination Station or a Clerk's Title Office to move 
to a different location at this time.  No credit will be given during this RFP process to any proposer who 
proposes to relocate a Driver's License Examination Station or a Clerk's Title Office to be closer to the 
proposer's site. 

QUESTIONNAIRE
(SUBMIT ORIGINAL) 

1. Proposer's name  ___________________________________________________________________

2. Street address of proposed site  ________________________________________________________

City  ____________________________________  State  ___________________  Zip  ___________
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3. If the proposed site is close to an existing Driver's License Examination Station (Exam Station),
what is the address of the Exam Station?

Is the proposed site located within the same building, an adjacent building, the same business
district, or the same shopping center as the Exam Station?

No ______ Yes ______

Is it located within approximately one-half mile (0.5 miles) from the Exam Station? 

No ______ Yes ______

If YES, specify distance to nearest one-tenth mile:  ________________________________________ 

Also specify exact directions between the two facilities traveling in both directions (from the 
proposed site to the Exam Station and return):  

4. If the proposed site is close to an existing Clerk of Courts Title Office (Title Office), what is the
address of the Title Office?

Is it located within the same building, an adjacent building, the same business district, or the same
shopping center as the Title Office?

No ______ Yes ______

Is it located within approximately one-half mile (0.5 miles) from the Title Office? 

No ______ Yes ______

If YES, specify distance to nearest one-tenth mile:  ________________________________________

Also specify exact directions between the two facilities traveling in both directions (from the 
proposed site to the Title Office and return):

Form 5.4, Proximity Attachment, Page 2 of 2 (20 )

✔
















